
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Council Chambers and Video Conference5:30 PMMonday, September 14, 2020

Due to the ongoing the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission shall be held in-person in the Council Chamber at Grand Prairie 

City Hall, as well as by videoconference.  Members of the Commission and the public may 

elect to participate by attending the meeting in-person, or remotely via videoconference.  

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: Sep 14, 2020 05:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada)

Topic: City of Grand Prairie - Planning & Zoning Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/92005625957?pwd=MkZ6SU02MjRHVlhMUmlIWVYzRlY0QT09

Passcode: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,92005625957#,,,,,,0#,,4267911571#  or 

+14086380968,,92005625957#,,,,,,0#,,4267911571#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or 

+1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592

Webinar ID: 920 0562 5957

Passcode: 4267911571

    International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/abQLOOIa2Y

All meeting participants attending remotely will be automatically muted until it is their 

turn to speak.  To be recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting 

platform.  Those joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After 

speaking, please remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and msespinoza@gptx.org in PDF format no later than 3 

o’clock p.m. on Monday, September 14th.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

Agenda Review

COVID Meeting Procedures

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                        6:30 p.m. Council Chambers and Video Conference

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

20-10368 Approval of Minutes of the August 24, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdfAttachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

20-10360 P200902 - Preliminary Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council 

District 1).  A Preliminary Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot 

on 12.58 acres. Legally described as Tract 28, John R. Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 

137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  Zoned PD-39, 

Planned Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast corner of 

Hardrock Rd and W Oakdale Rd.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

20-10361 P200903 - Final Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1). 

A Final Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres.  

Legally described as Tract 28, John R. Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 137, Page No. 

65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  Zoned PD-39, Planned 

Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast corner of Hardrock 

Rd and W Oakdale Rd.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

Items for Individual Consideration

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

20-10362 S200902 - Site Plan - West Oakdale Industrial III (City Council District 1).  Site 

Plan for a 2-story, 335,687 sq. ft. Office-Showroom/Warehouse facility on one lot. 

19.30 acres out of the James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract 848, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development-39 (PD-39) District, 

generally located south of E. Oakdale Road and 1,650 ft. west of N. Belt Line Road.

Exhibit A Locator Map S200902

Exhibit B SP S200902

Exhibit C LP S200902

Exhibit D Tree Suv S200902

Exhibit E Elev S200902

Attachments:

Public Hearing

20-10363 SU200903/S200903 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - PJ's Coffee (City Council 

District 5).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,580 sq. ft. Restaurant with a 

Drive-Through on one lot.  0.50 acres out of the Richard Wilson Survey, Abstract 

1548, Sheets Subdivision, Block A, Lot 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, generally located  east of N. Belt Line Road 

and approximately 550 feet south of E. Tarrant Road, and addressed as 614 N. Belt 

Line Road.

Exhibit A Location Map

Exhibit B SP SU200903

Exhibit C Elev SU200903

Exhibit D Rend SU200903

Attachments:

20-10364 SU200901 - Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink Tattoos (City Council District 5).  

Specific Use Permit for a Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio.  Lot 8, Block 1, Original 

Town Grand Prairie, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned CA, within 

Central Business District No. 2, and addressed as 117 E Main St.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Attachment i - Floorplan.pdf

Attachment ii - Operational Plan.pdf

Attachments:

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

20-10365 Z200901 - Zoning Change - AT&T Cellular Tower (City Council District 1). Planned 

Development (zoning) and Site Plan request for (130' height monopole) cellular tower 

location.  0.057 acre tract (approximately 2,500 SF) situated in the James W. Harris 

Survey, Abstract No. 1072, zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1) District and located in 

State Hwy 161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District.  The property is generally 

located southeast of Lower Tarrant Road and approximately 1,530 feet east of State 

Hwy 161 Service Road.

Exhibit A Locator Map Z200901 SU200902

Exhibit B Site Exhibit Z200901 SU200902

Attachments:

20-10366 Z200902 - Zoning Change - SF-6 at 317 NW 14th (City Council District 5). A 

request to change the base zoning from General Retail District (GR) to Single Family 

Six Residential District (SF-6) to allow for a single family residence to be built. 

Located at 317 NW 14th Street. Legally described as Lots 3 & 4, Block 13, 

Dalworth Park Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, 

General Retail District, generally located south of Dalworth St on the west side of 

NW 14th St, and addressed as 317 NW 14th St.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdfAttachments:

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

Adjournment

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 14, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 09/11/2020

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10368 Name: Approval of Minutes of the August 24, 2020 P&Z
meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the August 24, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
Approval of Minutes of the August 24, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Vice-Chairperson Shawn Connor, 
Secretary Max Coleman, and Commissioners, Cheryl Smith, Julia Perez, Bill Moser, Eric Hedin, 
Warren Landrum, Clayton Fisher. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Deputy City Manager Bill Crolley, Planning and Development Director, 
Rashad Jackson, Savannah Ware, Chief City Planner, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett 
Huntsman, Transportation Planner, Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:31 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Chairperson Spare led the pledge of allegiance to 
the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of August 10, 2020.  
  

CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P200801 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage 
Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat for Heritage Towne, a single family 
residential development with 104 residential lots and 9 open space lots on 39.539 acres.  Tracts 
186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No.616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, 
Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive. 

Item #3 – P200802 - Final Plat - Mira Lagos East Commercial Addition, Lot 33, Block D (City 
Council District 4).  A Final Plat to create Lot 33, Block D out of 1 acre from the BBB & C RR 
Survey.  Tracts 2.7, and 4.1, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 
County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway Overlay, generally located west of Lake 
Ridge Parkway and south of England. 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Item #4- P200803 - Final Plat - Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City 
Council District 4).  A Final Plat to create Lot 1, Block 1 out of 3.545 acres from the BBB & C 
RR Survey.  Tracts 2.3, and 3, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, 
Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway Overlay, generally located west of 
Lake Ridge Parkway and north of S. Grand. 
 
Item #5- P200401 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 4 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for 
Greenway Trails Phase 4, creating 131 residential lots and three non-residential lots on 62.129 
acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, 
Texas.  Zoned PD-322 and generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-
661. 

Item #6- P200402 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 5 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for 
Greenway Trails Phase 5, creating 129 residential lots and six non-residential lots on 75.830 
acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County.  
The subject property is zoned PD-322A and is generally located north of US-287, east of SH-
360, and west of FM-661. 

Item #7- S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an 
industrial contractor shop and office space on 3.705 acres 3.705 acre tract, Tarpley Holland 
Survey, Abstract No. 750, (R.E.S.Subdivision) City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, 
zoned PD-371, generally located southeast Jefferson Street and S. Great South Parkway, and 
addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway. 

 
Vice Chairperson Connor moved to approve the minutes, cases P200801, P200802, P200803, 
P200401, P200402, and S200803. 
 
Motion:  Connor     
Second:   Moser                               
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Landrum, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #8 - SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - 
Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council District 1).   
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and table case SU200801/S200801.   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second: Connor                            
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Landrum, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #9 - CP200801- Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City 
Council District 2).   
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and table case CP200801.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second:  Smith                           
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Landrum, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez  
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10360 Name: P200902 - Preliminary Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot
1, Block 1 (City Council District 1)

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: P200902 - Preliminary Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1).  A Preliminary
Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres. Legally described as Tract
28, John R. Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas.  Zoned PD-39, Planned Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast
corner of Hardrock Rd and W Oakdale Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200902 - Preliminary Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1).  A Preliminary Plat of
Lot 1, Block 1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres. Legally described as Tract 28, John R.
Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  Zoned PD-39,
Planned Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast corner of Hardrock Rd and W
Oakdale Rd.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Preliminary Plat for Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1. Legally described as Tract 28, John R. Baugh Survey,
Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. Zoned PD-39, Planned
Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast corner of Hardrock Rd and W Oakdale Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to create one lot of 12.58 acres to facilitate future warehouse
development at this location. The proposed warehouse development will be approximately 222,000 square feet
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10360, Version: 1

development at this location. The proposed warehouse development will be approximately 222,000 square feet
and has already obtained City Council approval.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Warehouse/Trucking Terminal

South PD-39 Undeveloped

West PD-39 Industrial Use

East PD-39 Warehouse

HISTORY:

· November 20th, 2018: The City Council approved a Specific Use Permit/Site Plan for Hardrock
Development which included the proposed warehouse. (Case Number SU181002/S181002).

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat depicts existing utility easements and shows any proposed new utility easements. Engineering plans
are currently under review. Along with the easements, the floodplain is shaded to show the area within the
subject property. The applicant will require floodplain and engineering approval before the Final Plat is
submitted for signatures.

The property is zoned PD-39 for Light Industrial uses. The following table summarizes the density and
dimensional requirements.  The Preliminary Plat meets these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Requirements

Standard Required Provided

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 548,174

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 547

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 999

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25

Final Plat for the Hardrock Addition is on the current agenda for Planning & Zoning Commission’s
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



N 
Hw

y 1
61

 N
b  

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sb
  

W Oakdale Rd

Ha
rd

ro
ck

 R
d

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sv
c S

b R
d

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sv
c N

b R
d

CASE LOCATION MAP
Preliminary Plat - P200902
Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



J

O

H

N

 
R

.
 
B

A

U

G

H

 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
1

3

7

ZONE AE

ZONE X

(SHADED)

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

(SHADED)

TRACT 1

285,609 S.F.

6.028 ACRES

TRACT 2

262,565 S.F.

6.557 ACRES

POINT OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 2

POINT OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 1

H
A

R
D

R
O

C
K

 
R

O
A

D

(
1

0
0

'
 
W

I
D

E
 
R

I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

)

J

O

H

N

 
R

.
 
B

A

U

G

H

 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
1

3

7

C

.
R

.
R

.
 
C

O

.
 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
2

0

2

WEST OAKDALE ROAD

(EXISTING VARIBLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

BLOCK 1, LOT 1

12.58 ACRES

548,174 SQ FT

LEGEND

SURVEYOR

DOUGLAS A. CALHOUN, RPLS

SURVEY MANAGER

HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC.

4000 FOSSIL CREEK BLVD.

FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76137

(817) 764-7505 DIRECT

dcalhoun@halff.com

BY

4000 FOSSIL CREEK BLVD.  FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76137  (817) 847-1422

OUT OF THE

IN THE

TBPELS FIRM NO. 10029605

12.58 ACRE TRACT

OF LAND

JOHN R. BAUGH SURVEY A-137

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AUGUST 27, 2020

N

0 20 60 120 180

SCALE: 1"=60'

PRELIMINARY PLAT

BLOCK 1, LOT 1

FOR

OF

ONE NON-RESIDENTIAL LOT

HARDROCK INDUSTRIAL, LLC

HARDROCK ADDITION

“ ” 

OWNER/DEVELOPER

HARDROCK INDUSTRIAL, LLC

CONTACT: WILLIAM G. MUNDINGER, III

3819 MAPLE AVENUE DALLAS, TX  75219

TEL: (214) 661-8341

FAX: (214) 445-0903

EMAIL: WMUNDINGER@CHINDUSTRIAL.COM

CASE NO. P200902

AN UNPLATTED

12.58 ACRE TRACT OF LAND

BEING ALL OF

“ ” “ ” 

“ ” “

” “ ” “

” 

N

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10361 Name: P200903 - Final Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1,
Block 1 (City Council District 1).

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: P200903 - Final Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1). A Final Plat of Lot 1,
Block 1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres.  Legally described as Tract 28, John R.
Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  Zoned PD
-39, Planned Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast corner of Hardrock Rd
and W Oakdale Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200903 - Final Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1). A Final Plat of Lot 1, Block
1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres.  Legally described as Tract 28, John R. Baugh Survey,
Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  Zoned PD-39, Planned

Development District - 39, and generally located on the southeast corner of Hardrock Rd and W Oakdale Rd.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1. Legally described as Tract 28, John R. Baugh Survey,
Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. Zoned PD-39, Planned
Development District - 39.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create one lot of 12.58 acres to facilitate future warehouse development at
this location. The proposed warehouse development will be approximately 222,000 square feet and has already

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10361, Version: 1

obtained City Council approval.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Warehouse/Trucking Terminal

South PD-39 Undeveloped

West PD-39 Industrial Use

East PD-39 Warehouse

HISTORY:

· November 20th, 2018: The City Council approved a Specific Use Permit / Site Plan for Hardrock
Development which included the proposed warehouse. (Case Number SU181002/S181002).

PLAT FEATURES:

The Final Plat depicts existing utility easements and establishes any new utility easements. Along with the
easements, the floodplain is shaded to show the area within the subject property. The applicant will require
floodplain and engineering approval before the Final Plat is submitted for signatures.

The property has frontage on W. Oakdale and Hardrock Roads. Therefore, anticipated access to these roadway
facilities can occur. Additional Right-Of-Way Dedication was determined not to be needed as the current ROW
is over 100 feet.

The property is zoned PD-39 for Light Industrial uses. The following table summarizes the density and
dimensional requirements.  The Final Plat meets these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Requirements

Standard Required Provided

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 548,174

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 547

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 999

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Final Plat subject to the following
conditions:

· Submission and review of flood plain development permit per Engineering Department.

· Prior to submitting final mylars for signatures, the owner shall obtain abandonment of the Texas
Electric Service Company easement/ right of way located on the west property line and reference it
with the separate instrument number on the plat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10361, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



N 
Hw

y 1
61

 N
b  

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sb
  

W Oakdale Rd

Ha
rd

ro
ck

 R
d

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sv
c S

b R
d

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sv
c N

b R
d

CASE LOCATION MAP
Final Plat - P200903
Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



J

O

H

N

 
R

.
 
B

A

U

G

H

 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
1

3

7

ZONE AE

ZONE X

(SHADED)

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

(SHADED)

TRACT 1

285,609 S.F.

6.028 ACRES

TRACT 2

262,565 S.F.

6.557 ACRES

POINT OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 2

POINT OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 1

H
A

R
D

R
O

C
K

 
R

O
A

D

(
1

0
0

'
 
W

I
D

E
 
R

I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

)

J

O

H

N

 
R

.
 
B

A

U

G

H

 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
1

3

7

C

.
R

.
R

.
 
C

O

.
 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
2

0

2

WEST OAKDALE ROAD

(EXISTING VARIBLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

BLOCK 1, LOT 1

12.58 ACRES

548,174 SQ FT

LEGEND

SURVEYOR

DOUGLAS A. CALHOUN, RPLS

SURVEY MANAGER

HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC.

4000 FOSSIL CREEK BLVD.

FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76137

(817) 764-7505 DIRECT

dcalhoun@halff.com

BY

4000 FOSSIL CREEK BLVD.  FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76137  (817) 847-1422

OUT OF THE

IN THE

TBPELS FIRM NO. 10029605

12.58 ACRE TRACT

OF LAND

JOHN R. BAUGH SURVEY A-137

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AUGUST 27, 2020

N

0 20 60 120 180

SCALE: 1"=60'

FINAL PLAT

BLOCK 1, LOT 1

FOR

OF

ONE NON-RESIDENTIAL LOT

HARDROCK INDUSTRIAL, LLC

HARDROCK ADDITION

“ ” 

OWNER/DEVELOPER

HARDROCK INDUSTRIAL, LLC

CONTACT: WILLIAM G. MUNDINGER, III

3819 MAPLE AVENUE DALLAS, TX  75219

TEL: (214) 661-8341

FAX: (214) 445-0903

EMAIL: WMUNDINGER@CHINDUSTRIAL.COM

CASE NO. P200903

AN UNPLATTED

12.58 ACRE TRACT OF LAND

BEING ALL OF

“ ” “ ” 

“ ” “

” “ ” “

” 

N

jtooley
Text Box
Exhibit B
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10362 Name: S200902 - Site Plan - West Oakdale Industrial III
(City Council District 1)

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: S200902 - Site Plan - West Oakdale Industrial III (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for a 2-story,
335,687 sq. ft. Office-Showroom/Warehouse facility on one lot. 19.30 acres out of the James
McLaughlin Survey, Abstract 848, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned
Development-39 (PD-39) District, generally located south of E. Oakdale Road and 1,650 ft. west of N.
Belt Line Road.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Locator Map S200902

Exhibit B SP S200902

Exhibit C LP S200902

Exhibit D Tree Suv S200902

Exhibit E Elev S200902

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
S200902 - Site Plan - West Oakdale Industrial III (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for a 2-story, 335,687 sq.
ft. Office-Showroom/Warehouse facility on one lot. 19.30 acres out of the James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract
848, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development-39 (PD-39) District, generally

located south of E. Oakdale Road and 1,650 ft. west of N. Belt Line Road.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan request to authorize construction an office/warehouse building on 19.30 acres. The proposed
development is situated in the James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 848, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, generally located south of E. Oakdale Road approximately 1,650 feet west of N. Belt Line
Road.  The property is zoned Planned Development 39 (PD-39) District.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10362, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 335,687 sq. ft. office/warehouse building on 19.30 acres. The proposed
site consists of multiple undeveloped tracts that would be subsequently platted into one property. Site Plan
approval by City Council is required for any project involving industrial uses with buildings exceeding 50,000
square feet.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

Appendix X: Industrial Development Standards of the UDC addresses potential adverse environmental, visual,
and truck traffic associated with large warehouses, outside storage, distribution-logistical related developments
exceeding five acres in size.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Undeveloped

South PD-39 Undeveloped

West PD-39 Undeveloped

East PD-39 Undeveloped (Open Space)

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposal includes one side-loaded office/warehouse-building. The building is speculative and will be
developed without specific tenants. The site will be accessible from two commercial drives off W. Oakdale
Road and includes a fire lane and access easement that loops around the facility. The site includes 76 overhead
dock doors and 84 tractor trailer parking spaces.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the LI and Appendix X Industrial Development Standards in the UDC. The table
below evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the
density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 840,761 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 820 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 1,457 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 100 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 200 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 47.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.44:1 Yes
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10362, Version: 1

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 840,761 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 820 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 1,457 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 100 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 200 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 47.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.44:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix X of the UDC. The
table below summarizes the requirements. The site exceeds the minimum landscape area, number of trees, and
number of shrubs and screening requirements.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 84,076 125,320 Yes

Trees 168 168 Yes

Parking Lot Trees 17 35 Yes

Shrubs 1,682 1,758 Yes

Foundation Plantings Along Primary Facades Provided Plantings Yes

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance Provided Plantings Yes

Truck Screening Wing Wall Wing Walls Yes

The site includes the required activation feature with 1.09 acres of open space, 978 linear ft. of walking trails, a
seating area, and a 6,832 sq. ft. garden.

Building Materials and Design

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC.
Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades include
at least two design elements. The tables below evaluate the design elements for each building. The proposed
building elevations meet Appendix X requirements.

The building exterior consists of textured concrete tilt-wall panels. The north facade elements include 15%
glazing, building articulation, and accent lighting.

Table 4: Building Design Elements

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North Primary Y Y Y         3     Yes

South SecondaryY Y         2     Yes

West SecondaryY Y         2     Yes

East SecondaryY Y         2     Yes

VARIANCES:
The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



CASE LOCATION MAP

Site Plan - S200902

West Oakdale Industrial III ´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255

www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A LOCATOR MAP



03
/A

1.
00

W
E

S
T

 O
A

K
D

A
L

E
IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 I

II

C
LI

E
N

T
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

S
E

A
L

:
JO

B
 #

 :

M

--
--

G
R

A
N

D

S
A

N
D

Y

H
A

R
D

R
O

C
K

EXHIBIT B SITE PLAN



JO
H

N

JO
H

N
 W

. F

A
B

S
T

JA
M

E
S

 M
C

LA
U

G
H

LI
N

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

A
B

S
T

R
A

C
T

 N
O

. 8
48

C
L

IE
N

T
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

S
E

A
L

:
JO

B
 #

 :

O
A

K
D

A
L

E
 P

H
A

S
E

 I
II

G
R

A
N

D
 P

R
A

IR
IE

, T
X

a 
r 

c 
h 

i t
 e

 c
 t 

u 
r 

e
R

EXHIBIT C LANDSCAPE PLAN



A
ug

us
t 2

6,
 2

02
0

R
ev

is
io

n

N
o.

D
at

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

40
00

 F
O

S
S

IL
 C

R
E

E
K

 B
LV

D
F

O
R

T
 W

O
R

T
H

, T
E

X
A

S
  7

61
3

7-
27

20
T

E
L 

(8
17

) 
84

7-
14

2
2

T
B

P
E

 F
IR

M
 #

F
-3

1
2

O
A

K
D

A
L

E
 I

II
G

R
A

N
D

 P
R

A
IR

IE
, 

T
E

X
A

S

I:\
36

00
0S

\3
60

78
\0

03
\T

R
E

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
\C

A
D

D
\C

E
-T

R
E

E
 S

U
R

V
-3

60
78

.0
03

.D
W

G

EXHIBIT D TREE SURVEY1



A
ug

us
t 2

6,
 2

02
0

R
ev

is
io

n

N
o.

D
at

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

40
00

 F
O

S
S

IL
 C

R
E

E
K

 B
LV

D
F

O
R

T
 W

O
R

T
H

, T
E

X
A

S
  7

61
3

7-
27

20
T

E
L 

(8
17

) 
84

7-
14

2
2

T
B

P
E

 F
IR

M
 #

F
-3

1
2

O
A

K
D

A
L

E
 I

II
G

R
A

N
D

 P
R

A
IR

IE
, 

T
E

X
A

S

I:\
36

00
0S

\3
60

78
\0

03
\T

R
E

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
\C

A
D

D
\C

E
-T

R
E

E
 S

U
R

V
-3

60
78

.0
03

.D
W

G

EXHIBIT D TREE SURVEY2



A
ug

us
t 2

6,
 2

02
0

R
ev

is
io

n

N
o.

D
at

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

40
00

 F
O

S
S

IL
 C

R
E

E
K

 B
LV

D
F

O
R

T
 W

O
R

T
H

, T
E

X
A

S
  7

61
3

7-
27

20
T

E
L 

(8
17

) 
84

7-
14

2
2

T
B

P
E

 F
IR

M
 #

F
-3

1
2

O
A

K
D

A
L

E
 I

II
G

R
A

N
D

 P
R

A
IR

IE
, 

T
E

X
A

S

I:\
36

00
0S

\3
60

78
\0

03
\T

R
E

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
\C

A
D

D
\C

E
-T

R
E

E
 S

U
R

V
-3

60
78

.0
03

.D
W

G

EXHIBIT D TREE SURVEY3



W
E

S
T

 O
A

K
D

A
L

E
IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 I

II

C
LI

E
N

T
:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

S
E

A
L

:
JO

B
 #

 :

M
I S

--
--

EXHIBIT EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10363 Name: SU200903/S200903 - Site Plan - PJ's Coffee (City
Council District 5).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: SU200903/S200903 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - PJ's Coffee (City Council District 5).  Specific
Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,580 sq. ft. Restaurant with a Drive-Through on one lot.  0.50 acres
out of the Richard Wilson Survey, Abstract 1548, Sheets Subdivision, Block A, Lot 2, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, generally located  east of N. Belt Line
Road and approximately 550 feet south of E. Tarrant Road, and addressed as 614 N. Belt Line Road.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Location Map

Exhibit B SP SU200903

Exhibit C Elev SU200903

Exhibit D Rend SU200903

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

SU200903/S200903 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - PJ's Coffee (City Council District 5).  Specific Use
Permit and Site Plan for a 2,580 sq. ft. Restaurant with a Drive-Through on one lot.  0.50 acres out of the
Richard Wilson Survey, Abstract 1548, Sheets Subdivision, Block A, Lot 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, generally located  east of N. Belt Line Road and approximately
550 feet south of E. Tarrant Road, and addressed as 614 N. Belt Line Road.

Presenter

Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Specific Use Permit and Site Plan request to authorize construction a 2,580 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-
through on 0.50 acres. The proposed development is situated in the Richard Wilson Survey, Abstract No. 1578,
Sheets Addition, Block A, Lot 2, Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, generally located east of N. Belt Line
Road approximately 550 feet south of E. Tarrant Road, and addressed as 614 N. Belt Line Road. The property
is zoned Commercial (C) District.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10363, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 2,580 sq. ft. restaurant with drive through on 0.50 acres. Drive through
restaurants require a Specific Use Permit. Development at this location requires a Specific Use Permit and Site
Plan approval by City Council.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction   Zoning Existing Use

North Commercial Undeveloped

South Commercial Animal Clinic
West SF-1 Park Land
East Commercial Undeveloped

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposed use is a Restaurant (Coffee Shop) with a Drive Through. The Site Plan includes a 2,580 sq. ft.
restaurant with one way circulation, dumpster enclosure, drive aisle, and 22 parking spaces. The site will be
accessible from a commercial drive along northbound N. Belt Line Road.

The drive-through lane wraps around the building. The menu board is located at rear of the building and the
pickup window is located on the north side of the building. The site includes an outdoor seating area at the
building entrance underneath a decorative canopy.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code
(UDC). The following table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the density and dimensional
requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 21,835 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 150 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 161 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 24 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio .5:1 .02:1 Yes

Parking Requirements

The property is subject to parking requirements in Article 10 of the UDC. The following table summarizes
these requirements. The proposal meets the parking requirements.

Table 3: Parking Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Parking 12 22 Yes

Handicap 2 2 Yes

Total Spaces 14 22 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10363, Version: 1
Table 3: Parking Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Parking 12 22 Yes

Handicap 2 2 Yes

Total Spaces 14 22 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC. The table below
summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 1,092 2,838 Yes

Trees 8 8 Yes

Shrubs 22 22 Yes

Building Design

The proposed exterior building materials are stucco and brick. The light brown stucco is accented by a gray
brick wainscot approximately three ft. in height.

SHARED FACILITIES:

The applicant constructed the veterinarian clinic south of the subject property in 2013. The clinic’s dumpster

and nine of its parking spaces are located on the subject property. The applicant is proposing that both

properties use the existing dumpster and share the nine parking spaces.

VARIANCES:

The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following condition:

1. The applicant shall create and file a shared facilities agreement that addresses the shared parking, shared
dumpster, and any necessary adjustments to the frequency of garbage collection.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Oak St

N 
Be

lt 
Li

ne
 R

d

Birch St

S Park Square Rd

W
Park Square Rd

Turner Park Rd

CASE LOCATION MAP
SU200903/S200903
PJ's Coffee ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦30

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B SITE & LANDSCAPE PLAN



EXHIBIT C ELEVATION



EXHIBIT D RENDERING



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10364 Name: SU200901 - Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink
Tattoos (City Council District 5).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: SU200901 - Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink Tattoos (City Council District 5).  Specific Use Permit
for a Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio.  Lot 8, Block 1, Original Town Grand Prairie, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned CA, within Central Business District No. 2, and addressed as 117
E Main St.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Attachment i - Floorplan.pdf

Attachment ii - Operational Plan.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

SU200901 - Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink Tattoos (City Council District 5).  Specific Use Permit for a
Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio.  Lot 8, Block 1, Original Town Grand Prairie, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas

County, Texas, zoned CA, within Central Business District No. 2, and addressed as 117 E Main St.

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

SU200901 - Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink Tattoos (City Council District 5). Specific Use Permit for a
Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio. Lot 8, Block 1, Original Town Grand Prairie, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned CA, within Central Business District No. 2, and addressed as 117 E Main St.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to open a Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio at 117 E Main St. A Tattoo and Body Piercing
Studio requires a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to identify those uses
which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to either their location, functional or operational
nature, could have potentially negative impact upon surrounding properties; and to provide for a procedure
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10364, Version: 1

nature, could have potentially negative impact upon surrounding properties; and to provide for a procedure
whereby such uses might be permitted by further restricting or conditioning them so as to eliminate such
probable negative impacts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North CA Office, Entertainment (Uptown Theater)

East CA Restaurant, Retail, Services
South CA Railroad
West CA Restaurant, Retail, Services

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant intends to open a Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio in an existing building. The studio will
include a front reception area, in which the applicant plans to create a small art gallery, and space for
tattoo/piercing stations.

The Unified Development Code (UDC) contains operational conditions for Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios.
The applicant will be required to comply with these conditions, which include the following:

· A studio shall operate with a valid license issued by the Texas Department of State Health Services and
subject to inspection by the State Department or its affiliates;

· No more than two Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios can operate in the Central Area zoning district;

· The operator in charge of the studio shall complete eight hours of continuing education on the practice
and safety regulations; and

· Hours of operation shall not extend beyond midnight.

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) in the City of Grand Prairie’s 2018 Comprehensive Plan is intended as an
outlook for the future use of land and the character of development in the community. The FLUM designates
this area as Mixed Use. Mixed use areas are integrated developments of retail, public, office, entertainment,
and residential uses. These areas are intended to provide flexibility and encourage innovative, unique, and
sustainable developments.  The proposed use is consistent with the FLUM.

The location is within the Downtown Plan study area. The purpose of the plan is to create a unique and
identifiable downtown that serves the local residents and community, supports economic vibrancy, and offers
destination-oriented uses to create greater regional gravity. The proposed use is consistent with the plan’s
purpose.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the condition that the applicant
comply with the operation conditions in the UDC.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



E Main St

Bradford St

S Center St
E Jefferson St

Ne 2nd StN Center St

Se 2nd St

W Main St

W Jefferson St

Se 2nd St

CASE LOCATION MAP
SU200901
Beautiful Ink Tattoos ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦30

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Attachment i - Floorplan
Page 1 of 1



Attachment ii - Operational Plan
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10365 Name: Z200901 - Zoning Change - AT&T Cellular Tower
(City Council District 1).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: Z200901 - Zoning Change - AT&T Cellular Tower (City Council District 1). Planned Development
(zoning) and Site Plan request for (130' height monopole) cellular tower location.  0.057 acre tract
(approximately 2,500 SF) situated in the James W. Harris Survey, Abstract No. 1072, zoned Single
Family-1 (SF-1) District and located in State Hwy 161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District.  The
property is generally located southeast of Lower Tarrant Road and approximately 1,530 feet east of
State Hwy 161 Service Road.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Locator Map Z200901 SU200902

Exhibit B Site Exhibit Z200901 SU200902

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

Z200901 - Zoning Change - AT&T Cellular Tower (City Council District 1). Planned Development (zoning)
and Site Plan request for (130' height monopole) cellular tower location.  0.057 acre tract (approximately 2,500
SF) situated in the James W. Harris Survey, Abstract No. 1072, zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1) District and
located in State Hwy 161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District.  The property is generally located southeast of
Lower Tarrant Road and approximately 1,530 feet east of State Hwy 161 Service Road.

Presenter

Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Consider approval of a Planned Development-Office Zoning District and Site Plan to allow for a 130’ height
(monopole) cellular communications tower location. The 0.057-acre property situated in the James W. Harris
Survey, Abstract No. 1072, zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1) District and generally located southeast of Lower
Tarrant Road and approximately 1,530 feet east of State Highway 161, specifically addressed as 1700 Lower

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10365, Version: 1

Tarrant Rd. The property is within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to create a Planned Development District with a base zoning district of Office that
allows a cell tower greater than 85 ft. by right. The applicant intends to construct and operate a
130’ (monopole) cellular tower. Cell towers greater than 85 ft. in height typically require approval of a Site
Plan.

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

In accordance with the applicant’s Operational Plan, the location, design and functions of the 130’ steel
monopole will serve growing wireless users within the SH 161 corridor. In addition, it will provide a critical
link to Nation’s FirstNet system and allow for dedicated frequencies for Grand Prairie’ First Responders. The
closest cellular tower is nearly two miles (7,050 ft.) to the east along Wildlife Pkwy.

The site is located just south of the City of Grand Prairie’s utility facility along Lower Tarrant Road and
approximately 530’ north of the Trinity River. The 3,350 sq. ft. site consists of the proposed tower and a small
unmanned (elevated) utility structure, housing generators and miscellaneous communication equipment. The
site shall be secured with minimum six-foot chain-link fence with overhead barbed wire along the perimeter.

CONFORMANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The subject property is designated as appropriate for Open Space/Drainage uses on the Future Land Use Map
(FLUM). Open Space/Drainage designations are typically located in 100 yr. flood plain and floodway areas.
The proposal is inconsistent with the FLUM.
Acknowledging the growing need for critical location of wireless communication facilities with the increase
demand for 5G and secured public safety systems, considerations should be weighed in as to the
appropriateness of the site.

APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:
This site shall conform to:

· FAA standards for communication towers.

· Flood plain development requirements for structures located within the 100 yr. flood plain as determined
by the Engineering Department.

REQUESTED APPEALS BY APPLICANT:

· Exception to the ratio of 3’ to 1’ height setback distance from residential zoned district.

· Telecommunications facilities be located on a platted lot.

RECOMMENDATION:

Due to the benefits of the proposed increase in service to residents and first responders, staff is amenable to the
proposed request for a Planned Development-Office District and Site Plan approval for construction and
operation of a 130’ Monopole Cellular Tower subject to conformance with:

· FAA standards for communication towers.

· Flood plain development requirements for structures located within the 100 yr. flood plain as determined
by the Engineering Department.

The Commission granting the following exceptions:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10365, Version: 1

· Exception to the ratio of 3’ to 1’ height setback distance from residential zoned district.

· Telecommunications facilities be located on a platted lot.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



CASE LOCATION MAP

Zoning Change - Z200901 

AT&T Cellular Tower ´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255

www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A LOCATOR MAP



EXHIBIT B SITE EXHIBIT



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10366 Name: Z200902 - Zoning Change - SF-6 at 317 NW 14th
(City Council District 5).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/14/2020

Title: Z200902 - Zoning Change - SF-6 at 317 NW 14th (City Council District 5). A request to change the
base zoning from General Retail District (GR) to Single Family Six Residential District (SF-6) to allow
for a single family residence to be built. Located at 317 NW 14th Street. Legally described as Lots 3 &
4, Block 13, Dalworth Park Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General
Retail District, generally located south of Dalworth St on the west side of NW 14th St, and addressed
as 317 NW 14th St.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

Z200902 - Zoning Change - SF-6 at 317 NW 14th (City Council District 5). A request to change the base
zoning from General Retail District (GR) to Single Family Six Residential District (SF-6) to allow for a single
family residence to be built. Located at 317 NW 14th Street. Legally described as Lots 3 & 4, Block 13,
Dalworth Park Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General Retail District,

generally located south of Dalworth St on the west side of NW 14th St, and addressed as 317 NW 14th St.

Presenter

Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Z200902 - Zoning Change - SF-6 at 317 NW 14th (City Council District 5). A request to change the base
zoning from General Retail District (GR) to Single Family Six Residential District (SF-6) to allow for a single
family residence to be built. Located at 317 NW 14th Street. Legally described as Lots 3 & 4, Block 13,
Dalworth Park Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General Retail District,

generally located south of Dalworth St on the west side of NW 14th St, and addressed as 317 NW 14th St.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10366, Version: 1

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North GR Commercial Office

South GR Single-Family Residences
West GR Single-Family Residences
East GR Single-Family Residences;

Storage Building

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:
The purpose of this request is to change the zoning on 0.15 acres from GR General Retail District to SF-6
Single-Family Six Residential District, to allow the applicant to construct a single-family dwelling on the lot.
The lot reasonably accommodates the uses permitted in the SF-6 base zoning district, and staff has found no
indication of adverse impacts on neighboring lands in relation to this zoning, or adverse effects on the public
health, safety, or welfare. The lot is currently vacant and surrounded by similarly developed properties to the
east, west, and south.

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant is requesting a zoning change from General Retail (GR) District to Single Family-Six (SF-6)
District to allow the construction of a single family detached home. If the property is rezoned to Single Family-
Six (SF-6) District, the property and proposed single family houses shall meet the minimum density and
dimensional requirements of the Unified Development Code. In order for the property to meet all the conditions
of Single Family-Six District, the applicant will be required to replat the property from two lots into one lot.

The zoning of General Retail District for this location and along Dalworth Street has been in place since the
1970’s. In the last four years, City Council has approved similar zoning requests along Dalworth Street.

CONFORMANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates the subject property as Commercial/Retail/Office (CRO). C/R/O
is not consistent with the SF-6. Staff is not proposing any changes to the FLUM at this time. The FLUM
designates the surrounding area as Mixed Use and CRO. This request and existing development identify the
need to review the FLUM for the area.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS
The existing base zoning is GR General Retail District. The proposed base zoning for the 0.15 acres is SF-6. All
zoning will defer to the Unified Development Code (UDC) as amended.

Dimensional Requirements
The following outlines the minimum dimensional requirements of the SF-6 district and provides an analysis of
the proposed compliance with the district.

Standard Required Meets If Replatted?

Min. Lot Area 5,000 s.f. No Yes

Min. Lot Width 50 ft. No Yes

Min. Lot Depth 100 ft. Yes Yes

Min. Front Setback 25 ft. Yes Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10366, Version: 1

VARIANCES:
The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the requested zoning change from General
Retail (GR) District to Single Family-Six (SF-6) District subject to the following condition:

· The property will need to be replatted from two lots into one to meet all the conditions of SF-6 zoning
district.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Dalworth St

Nw
 15

th
 St

Nw
 14

th
 St

Fort Worth St

N Hwy 161 Sb  

Fort Worth St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Zoning Change - Z200902
SF-6 at 317 NW 14th ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦30

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10368
	Microsoft Word - 08-24-2020.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10360
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8776838&GUID=971CE705-2FE9-4219-B1B6-047954B08420
	Layout1
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10361
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8776844&GUID=2DF74695-73FE-4FA0-8C32-E0E0A77B7053
	Layout1
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10362
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	A7.00.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10363
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8772628&GUID=FC8B1AA9-1287-4F93-8A1B-5458D6C3C81A
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10364
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8781293&GUID=655E902B-D7A0-451A-AF5A-6D9AFC079D37
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8781294&GUID=2EFF18FB-01BE-4054-BA2F-2CAC7B4FBA30
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8781295&GUID=5E5B4915-925A-4972-9E92-A4BF00650141
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10365
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Remote Desktop Redirected Printer Doc
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10366
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8776849&GUID=2FF005C2-5C3E-4F2D-84A6-A2A3F8FCDDF0




